DEVON & SOMERSET
FIRE & RESCUE AUTHORITY

M. Pearson
CLERK TO THE AUTHORITY

To: The Chair and Members of the Community SERVICE HEADQUARTERS
Safety & Corporate Planning Committee THE KNOWLE
CLYST ST GEORGE
(see below) EXETER
DEVON
EX3 ONW
Your ref : Date : 3 July 2017 Telephone : 01392 872200
Our ref : CSCPC/MP/SS Please ask for : Sam Sharman Fax : 01392 872300
Website : www.dsfire.gov.uk Email : ssharman@dsfire.gov.uk Direct Telephone : 01392 872393

COMMUNITY SAFETY & CORPORATE PLANNING COMMITTEE
(Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority)

Tuesday, 11th July, 2017

A meeting of the Community Safety & Corporate Planning Committee will be held on the
above date, commencing at 10.00 am in Committee Room B in Somerset House,
Service Headguarters to consider the following matters.

M. Pearson
Clerk to the Authority

AGENDA

PLEASE REFER TO THE NOTES AT THE END OF THE AGENDA LISTING SHEETS

1 Election of Chair

2 Apologies
3 Minutes (Pages 1 - 2)
of the previous meeting held on 21 April 2017 attached.

4 Items Requiring Urgent Attention
Items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the meeting as matters
of urgency.

5 Election of Vice Chair

www.dsfire.gov.uk Acting to Protect & Save




PART 1 - OPEN COMMITTEE

6 Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Service Performance Report: April 2016 to March
2017 (Pages 3 - 20)

Report of the Chief Fire (CSCPC/17/6) attached.

7 Draft Integrated Risk Management Plan

Report of the Assistant Chief Fire Officer — Service Improvement (CSCPC/17/7) TO
FOLLOW.

MEMBERS ARE REQUESTED TO SIGN THE ATTENDANCE REGISTER

Membership:-

Councillors Eastman (Chair), Bown, Colthorpe, Ellery, Leaves (Vice-Chair), Prowse
and Redman



NOTES

1.

Access to Information

Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or lists of background papers relating to any item on this
agenda should contact the person listed in the “Please ask for” section at the top of this agenda.

Reporting of Meetings

Any person attending a meeting may report (film, photograph or make an audio recording) on any part of the
meeting which is open to the public — unless there is good reason not to do so, as directed by the Chairman
- and use any communication method, including the internet and social media (Facebook, Twitter etc.), to
publish, post or otherwise share the report. The Authority accepts no liability for the content or accuracy of
any such report, which should not be construed as representing the official, Authority record of the meeting.
Similarly, any views expressed in such reports should not be interpreted as representing the views of the
Authority.

Flash photography is not permitted and any filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible from a single
fixed position without the use of any additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the
meeting and having regard also to the wishes of any member of the public present who may not wish to be
filmed. As a matter of courtesy, anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chairman or the
Democratic Services Officer in attendance so that all those present may be made aware that is happening.

Declarations of Interests (Authority Members only)

(a). Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

If you have any disclosable pecuniary interests (as defined by Regulations) in any item(s) to be considered
at this meeting then, unless you have previously obtained a dispensation from the Authority’s Monitoring
Officer, you must:

(). disclose any such interest at the time of commencement of consideration of the item in which you
have the interest or, if later, as soon as it becomes apparent to you that you have such an interest;

(ii). leave the meeting room during consideration of the item in which you have such an interest, taking
no part in any discussion or decision thereon; and
(iii). not seek to influence improperly any decision on the matter in which you have such an interest.
If the interest is sensitive (as agreed with the Monitoring Officer), you need not disclose the nature of the

interest but merely that you have a disclosable pecuniary interest of a sensitive nature. You must still follow
(i) and (iii) above.

(b). Other (Personal) Interests

Where you have a personal (i.e. other than a disclosable pecuniary) interest in any matter to be considered
at this meeting then you must declare that interest no later than the commencement of the consideration of
the matter in which you have that interest, or (if later) the time at which the interest becomes apparent to
you. If the interest is sensitive (as agreed with the Monitoring Officer), you need not disclose the precise
nature of the interest but merely declare that you have a personal interest of a sensitive nature.

If the interest is such that it might reasonably be perceived as causing a conflict with discharging your duties
as an Authority Member then, unless you have previously obtained a dispensation from the Authority’s
Monitoring Officer, you must not seek to improperly influence any decision on the matter and as such may
wish to leave the meeting while it is being considered. In any event, you must comply with any reasonable
restrictions the Authority may place on your involvement with the matter in which you have the personal
interest.

Part 2 Reports

Members are reminded that any Part 2 reports as circulated with the agenda for this meeting contain
exempt information and should therefore be treated accordingly. They should not be disclosed or passed on
to any other person(s). Members are also reminded of the need to dispose of such reports carefully and are
therefore invited to return them to the Committee Secretary at the conclusion of the meeting for disposal.

Substitute Members (Committee Meetings only)

Members are reminded that, in accordance with Standing Order 35, the Clerk (or his representative) must
be advised of any substitution prior to the start of the meeting. Members are also reminded that
substitutions are not permitted for full Authority meetings.




This page is intentionally left blank



*

*

*

Agenda Iltem 3

COMMUNITY SAFETY & CORPORATE PLANNING COMMITTEE
(Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority)

21 April 2017
Present:-

Councillors Bown, Colthorpe, Ellery, Hill and Redman

Apologies:-

Councillors Eastman and Leaves

CSCPC/16 Election of Chair for the Meeting

In accordance with Standing Order 32(6), in the absence of both the Chair and the
Vice Chair of the Committee, the election of Chair for this meeting was undertaken.

RESOLVED that Councillor Bown be elected Chair for this meeting of the
Committee.

CSCPC/17  Minutes

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 February 2017 be signed as
a correct record.

CSCPC/18 Integrated Risk Management Plan

The Committee received for information a report of the Assistant Chief Fire Officer —
Service Improvement (CSCPC/17/3) that provided an update on the progress made
with the new Integrated Risk Management Plan (IRMP) and which set out the
outcomes of the risk analysis exercise that had been undertaken in order to support
its development.

It was noted that 6 key risks had been identified which were:

e Risk 1 —anincreasingly ageing population;

e Risk 2 — common health and wellbeing risks;

¢ Risk 3 — availability of on call appliances;

¢ Risk 4 — historic distribution of service delivery resources;

¢ Risk 5 - increasing demand for emergency medical response (co-
responding), and;

e Risk 6 — increasing number of serious fires in commercial premises.

A workshop had been held for the Committee on 4 April 2017 to feed its views into
the risk analysis stage. Members who attended the workshop had given valuable
feedback including (but not limited to) the point that any proposals must be evidence
based and support the Service’s key priorities.

It was noted that the next steps in this process would be for a draft IRMP to be
produced for consideration by the Fire & Rescue Authority at its meeting in June/July
2017.

Page 1



*

*

CSCPC/19

CSCPC/20

Historic Buildings

The Committee received for information a report of the Assistant Chief Fire Officer —
Service Delivery (CSCPC/17/4) that set out the work that had been undertaken to
raise awareness of fire safety prevention for heritage buildings following the
devastating fire at Cathedral Yard in Exeter. The Business Safety Manager for
Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Service had investigated ways in which the
Service could offer suitable advice and support to owners and occupiers of heritage
buildings (which would include Grade I, 1I* and Il listed buildings) and the actions that
were being taken included:

e The promation free phone number for owners of heritage buildings to contact
us;

¢ A review of all heritage buildings in Service area,;

¢ Aninvitation to education events aimed at heritage building
owners/managers;

¢ Additional training for Business Safety staff;
¢ The development of a Service guidance note for heritage buildings;
¢ The Development of a guidance leaflet for owners of heritage buildings, and;

e The development of partnership and collaborative working arrangements with
heritage agencies.

Virtual Reality Headsets for Community Engagement

The Committee received for information a report of the Assistant Chief Fire Officer —
Service Delivery (CSCPC/17/5) that set out the work that had been undertaken on
the introduction of Virtual Reality technology within the Service. This was being used
as a tool to engage with the community to highlight the issues of road safety and
water safety, amongst others.

It was noted that the Community Safety Education Department was in the process of
producing a virtual reality water safety film that would focus on some of the key
issues faced by Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Service as well as nationally,

highlighting the dangers of drink drowning, cold water shock and peer pressure in
particular.

*DENOTES DELEGATED MATTER WITH POWER TO ACT

The meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 11.30 am

Page 2



Agenda Iltem 6

REPORT REFERENCE
NO.

CSPC/17/6

MEETING

COMMUNITY SAFETY & CORPORATE PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE OF MEETING

11 JULY 2017

SUBJECT OF REPORT

DEVON AND SOMERSET FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE
PERFORMANCE REPORT: October 2015 TO September 2016

LEAD OFFICER

CFO Lee Howell

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the report be noted.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Attached for consideration and discussion is the Devon & Somerset Fire
& Rescue Authority Performance Report for the reporting period of April
2016 — March 2017 (focus Quarter 4, 2017).

In the report we use green to represent normal performance, amber to
represent performance which may require monitoring and red to
represent performance which needs investigation.

The key messages within the report are also given green, amber and
red ratings which are established through assessing the different types
of analysis i.e. performance vs previous year, performance vs previous
guarter, trends and performance against normal variation. This method
gives a more rounded picture of performance and directs focus more
effectively on emerging issues.

Commentary is provided direct from those leading on improving
performance for areas outlined in the key messages to provide context.

RESOURCE None
IMPLICATIONS
EQUALITY RISKS AND None

BENEFITS ANALYSIS
(ERBA)

APPENDICES

Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority Performance Report for the
reporting period of April 2016 — March 2017.

LIST OF BACKGROUND
PAPERS

Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Authority Corporate Plan 2013/14
—2014/15

Page 3




This page is intentionally left blank



Performance Report

Audit and Performance Review
Committee: Quarter 4 2016/17




Devon and Somerset Performance Report
April 2016 to March 2017

About this report

In this performance report for Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescues Service we examine the dataset for the full year
January 2016 - December 2016.

The report will focus on performance against the three service priorities; Public Safety, Staff Safety and Efficiency
and Effectiveness.

Contents

This report comprizes:

= DT S 3-5

The communities we serve and our role withinthem ... ... ... 6

Understanding this repomt ... e e 7
Measures 1to 6 Statisties . 8
Measures 1 00 B oMM By e et e 9-12
Measures 7 and B Statistics. .. ... e e 13
Measures 7 and 8 Commentany. . ... ..o e e e 14-15
Sickmess statisties. .. 16

Page 6



Executive Summary
Priority: Public Safety - Response

Emergency Calls Handled - in the 12 month period from Apr-16 to Mar-17 Devon and
Somerset Fire and Rescue Senice handled 26,870 emergency calls.

Emergency Calls Not Attended - of these calls 10,437 (39%) did not result in DSFRS
. attendance at an incident. For example, a call may be challenged if it is thought to be
malicious or a response may be stood down as it is no longer deemed necessary.

10,437

Emergency Calls Attended - of these calls 16,433 (61%) resulted in attendance at an
incident.

The information below gives some context around emergency response activities.

Fires, 4202 Special Service Incidents,
(25%) 6877 (42%)

Incidents Attended - Fires

Fire incidents are broken down into three high level categories:

Primary fires include all fires in non-derelict buildings (excluding where confined to a
chimney), outdoor structures, non-abandoned vehicles or any fire involving death, injury,
rescue or more than five appliances.

Secondary fires include the majority of outdoor fires such as grassland or refuse (unless

= Primary, 2325 (14%) involving death, injury or rescue), derelict buildings and abandoned vehicles.
® Chimney, 431 (2%)

Secondary, 1446 (9%) Chimney fires include all fires in chimneys that did not extend beyond the chimney itself.
Incidents Attended - Special Service
Special service incidents are broken down into three high level categories:
Road Traffic Collisions (RTCs) include all collisions attended by DSFRS which did not

result in a fire. DSFRS does not attend all RTC incidents and figures only represent those
which were attended by the Senice.

Medical emergencies include Co-responder incidents for which DSFRS provide first
response on behalf of the South West Ambulance Senice Trust (SWAST). There are 19 co-
responder stations in DSFRS which use specialist vehicles and equipment. NB due to the
'?"130“/:3"’" Emergency, 2873 Control Room changes in April 2016 these incidents are recorded differently

Other, 2914 (18%)

ERTC, 1090 (7%)

Other incidents include flooding, rescue from height / confined space, animal rescue

Incidents Attended - False Alarms

False alarm incidents are broken down into three high level categories:

Malicious False Alarms (MFAs) are calls made with the intention of getting the Senice to
respond to a non-existent incident.

»

False Alarm Good Intent (FAGIs) are calls made in the belief that the Senice would

attend an emergency incident. For example, smoke in the distance may be a bonfire that
= Malicious, 112 (1%)

= Good Intent, 1383 (8%)

is under control.

Apparatus, 3859 (24%) . . Lo ) o )
Automatic Fire Alarm (AFAs) are calls initiated by fire alarm or fire-fighting equipment

operating, this includes acciderBlagﬁioz of alarm equipment.



April 2016 to March 2017

Priority: Public Safety - Response

Emergency Calls Attended - in the 12 month period from Apr-16 to Mar-17 Devon and
Somerset Fire and Rescue Senice attended 16,433 emergency calls in the DSFRS area.

~— Incidents where people were helped - medical emergency 3,467 (21%)

— Incidents where people were helped - other incident 2,762 (17%)

Incidents where people were helped - fire incident 254 (2%)

The information below gives some context around the number of people the Senice directly helps at emergencies by
incident type.

Fire Related Saves, Injuries and Deaths

How often does the Service have to help people at fire incidents?
4 =100 fires

. RN N N N Y TN N A A A A NN T R AT AN A W NP AT NN N W NN A N AP AN W A A A WA A N A W A A
All Fires: 4,202

. . ok b o b b ok ok ok oh ok ok ok ok o koo ok
Primary Fires: 2,325

Fires where people A o
needed help: 254

What happened to those who needed help at the 254 fire incidents?

'i‘ =10 persons

Number of people o
helped: 298 'M

saves: 202 TREreReeeeR R e ReROLY
Injuries: 85 wwwwwwwwm.
Deaths: 11 w

What is the Service doing to reduce fire incidents, injuries and deaths?

Prevention Activities

In 2016/17 the Senvice conducted 11,249 targeted Home Safety Visits (this figure includes ‘Level 2 Home Fire Safety
Visits’, ‘Replacement Alarm Visits’, ‘At Property Level 1 Home Fire Safety Checks’ and ‘Not At Property Level 1
Home Fire Safety Checks’, but excludes ‘Home Safety Follow-up Visits’) to those identified as having the most to
benefit from our expert guidance and support. We work closely with our colleagues in other agencies and third sector
organisations to build partnerships that enable us to ensure that our resources are used to provide maximum benefit
to the community.

We engage with our communities in a variety of ways including educating children and young people through schools
talks and structured programmes such as Fire Cadets, Phoenix and FireSetters. In addition to the Home Safety Visit
activities, between April 2016 and March 2017 the Senice undertook 4,696 preventative activities to improve public
safety (this figure comprises all Prevention Activities except those relating to Home Safety Visits).

Protection Activities

DSFRS has a statutory obligation to ensure that non-domestic premises and public events are compliant with fire
safety regulations. Between April 2016 and March 20, lﬁﬁée jce conducted 2518 fire safety checks, 595 fire safety
audits and 5995 other protection activities to ensure pu fe%.



Executive Summary
Looking Forward...

The Quarter 4 2016/17 Performance Report is also the year-end report and provides an opportunity to review the
performance of the Senice over the past 12 months. Owerall it is pleasing to note that performance against 7 of the 8
primary measures has either improved or at least held steady, this implies that the activity being undertaken is having
a positive effect be that prevention, protection or response. However, there is more we can do.

Fire Deaths

It is positive that we have seen a reduction in deaths where people live during 2016/17 compared to previous year. It
is also notable that there have been no fire-related deaths where people live during quarter 4 (January 2017 to March
2017).

The Senvice proactively identifies and engages with members of the community that benefit most from additional
support to stay safe from fire in the home. We work to build partnerships with agencies that are in direct contact with
the people that we want to focus our resources towards. This includes social care providers, housing associations
and charities as well as other government agencies and emergency senices.

Unfortunately we have not seen the same positive performance in fire-related deaths where people work visit and in
wvehicles where we have sadly attended five fatal incidents. Of these, three occurred in vehicles, one outdoors and one
in a commercial premises.

The Community Safety Strategy is in development and will support the review of the Senice’s Integrated Risk
Management Plan.

Fire Injuries

There has been an owverall reduction in the number or injuries sustained by the public at fire incidents during 2016/17
compared to previous year. However, there has been an increase in Q4 2016/17 compared to previous quarter for
injuries from fires where people live. Performance will continue to be monitored.

Work is ongoing to understand how we can continue to improve the delivery and content of the prevention activities
that we provide and will be a key component of the new Community Safety Strategy.

Fires
There has been an owverall increase in primary fires of 4.8% compared to previous year. However in Q4 2016/17 we
have seen an improvement against previous quarter, which is positive and it is hoped that this will continue.

Emergency Response Standards

Over the last 12 months there has been a lot of focus on improving availability of resources. There have been a
number of initiatives and pilots undertaken and an Operational Resource Centre (ORC) has been implemented. The
ORC uses a risk based approach to ensure that available resources are used most effectively to manage availability of
appliances.

Improving Data Quality - Incident Data Capture
The ICT department has started development of the Single Operational Reporting Tool (SORT); a single, streamlined
process to capture incident related data.

It will incorporate the national requirements of the Home Office’s Incident Recording System (IRS) along with other
data relating to incidents in one place. ICT is working with Senice Delivery and other key stakeholders to develop
input screens that adapt according to the information that has been entered so that only relevant information is
requested.

SORT will be accessible on a variety of Senice devices and allow collection of data for the event that is more relevant,
accurate, comprehensive and timely.

The approach supports the Senice goals of efﬁciencyla)‘a t@ness and the data can be used to inform activities
which support increased community wellbeing through targeted input by DSFRS and our partners.



Devon and Somerset Performance Report
April 2016 to March 2017

The communites we serve and
our role within them

Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Service is the largest non-metropolitan fire and rescue service in England. We
provide prevention, protection and response services across the counties of Devon and Somerset (including Torbay
and Plymouth), an area of over 10,000 =q km.

We have 85 fire stations, the second largest number in England and 1,983 staff who work to protect the 1.7 million
people who live in our service area. Thig alongside the additional 400,000 pecple who visit this wonderful part of the

country every year.

Somerset
Area East

Central Area
East

- Map to show our service areas

Making our communities safer is not just about responding to emengencies. The Service undertakes a variety of
proactive activities to reduce the risk to our communities in order to prevent them from being in a situation where they
require an emergency response.

Our community safety prevention activities are designed to educate the public to make them safer. There are a range
of initiatives delivered by the Service and are targeted towards those in our community who will benefit most from our
support. These include Home Safety Visits, Road Traffic Collizion (RTC) programmes such as The Honest Truth and
Schools Visits.

Understanding our communities is key to enabling our prevention activities to be targeted effectively and the Service
works with partner agencies and third sector organisations to ensure that our resources are directed to the places
where they are needed most.

Our community safety protection activities are designed to ensure that businesses and events comply with the
legislation outlined in the Regulators Code (2015). This includes fire safety checks and auditz of commercial premises,

building regulation consultations and enforcement activities.

Page 10



Devon and Somerset Performance Report
April 2016 to March 2017

Understanding this report

In this performance report for Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Service we examine the dataset for the most recent
12 months.

The report iz structured around the three service priorties; Public Safety, Staff Safety and Efficiency and Effectiveness
and will primarily focus on corporate performance measures 1 to 8 and Sickness.

However, additional information has been incorporated to give context around the activities undertaken by the Sernvice.
This information can be found in the Executive Summary and as supplementary data within the statistics sections of
the report.

The key messages identified within the report will be delivered through the commentary sections of the report.

What will the report show?
The Service is changing the way that it monitors and manages performance to use a more rounded analysis of data to
trigger steps to investigate and prevent escalation of emerging risks.

In previous reports the focus has been solely on performance against previous year and frend analysis. While this is
interesting and can provide some useful data what we really need to know is whether the changes we are seeing are
‘normal’.

In order to understand this we can apply anahytical technigues to calculate thresholds which allow us to understand if
performance iz within normal levels, requires monitoring or requires immediate investigation.

In this report we combine the three methods of analysis to build a rounded picture of performance. Notable
performance will be presented in the Execulive Summary, with data tables available in the Corporate and Non-
Caorporate Performance Measure section of the report. An example can be seen below.

Measure 3: fires where people live

Measure 3 month 12 month Trend
breakdown (Vs previous) (V= pervious)

Againzst Expected

June-15
258 (-4%) 1000 (-2%)

0 Latest 3 months of reporting period (e.g. Apr-15 to Jun-15) and percentage change compared to previous 3
months (e.g. Jan-15 to Mar-15).

9‘ Latest 12 months of reporting period (e.g. Jul-14 to Jun-15) and percentage change compared to previous 12
months (e.g. Jul-13 to Jun-14).

ﬂ' Trends covering all months for 1 year (12 months), 3 years (36 months) and 5 years (60 months).

0 Performance against calculated threshold by month i.e. Green = Normal, Yellow = Monitor, Red = Action
In some instances you will also see the term Critical to Quality, this is where the Service will need to take action
at a point before the triggers highlighted above in point number four. For example, any death will require further

investigation from the Service so section four will turn amber if a death is recorded and red if figures reach action
levels according to the calculated threshold.

Page 11



Corporate Measures 1to 6

Priority: Public Safety

The incident related data that are used in this section of the report are sourced from the Incident Recording System
(IRS). The data was sourced on the 30/06/2017.

Measure 1: Fire-related deaths where people live

Afire related death is recorded if the cause of death is directly as a result of fire, even if death occurs after the incident. This
is a critical to quality measure and will show as amber or red in the "Against Expected” section if a death has occurred.

3 month 12 month Trend (years) Against Expected

Measure Breakdown (previous) (previous) 1 3 5 Apr-16

Deaths - All Fires 0 (4) 6 (8) Vv
Deaths - Accidental Fires 0 (4) 5 (6) v |V ¥ clc|cl e[~ c]c]c]e
Deaths - Deliberate Fires 0 (0) 1(2) v VY

Measure 2: Injuries as aresult of fires where people live
Afire injuryis recorded if the cause of injuryis directly as a result of fire and required hospital treatment. This includes where
an injury has occurred as a result of attempts to escape such as falls resulting in injury.

3 month 12 month Trend (years) Against Expected

Measure Breakdown s (— 1 3 5 Apr16

Injuries - Al Fires 24 (14) 64 (83) v | A
Injuries - Accidental Fires 21 (13) 53 (76) vV i a | A
Injuries - Deliberate Fires 3(1) 11 (7) A N ()

Measure 3: Fires where people live

All primary fire incidents occurring at domestic premises (does not include sheltered accommodation, hotels etc.).

3 month 12 month Trend (years) Against Expected
(previous) (previous) 1 3 5 Apr-16

All Fires 252 (271) 1004 (966)

Accidental Fires 231 (248) 923 (907)

Deliberate Fires 21 (23) 81 (59)

Measure Breakdown

Measure 4: Fire related deaths where people work, visit and in vehicles

Afire related death is recorded if the cause of death is directly as a result of fire, even if death occurs after the incident. This
is a critical to quality measure and will show as amber or red in the "Against Expected" section if a death has occurred.

kd 3 month 12 month Trend (years) Against Expected
Measure Breakdown (previous) (previous) 1 3 5 Apris
Deaths - All Fires
Deaths - Accidental Fires

Deaths - Deliberate Fires

Measure 5: Injures as aresult of fires where people work, visit and in vehicles

Afire injuryis recorded if the cause of injuryis directly as a result of fire and required hospital treatment. This includes where
an injury has occurred as a result of attempts to escape such as falls resulting in injury.

3 month 12 month Trend (years) Against Expected

Measure Breakdown

(previous) (previous) 1 3 Apr-16
Injuries - All Fires 1(1) 21 (36) v
Injuries - Accidental Fires 1(1) 19 (29) R 4
Injuries - Deliberate Fires 0 (0) 2 (7) v |V

Measure 6: Fires where people work, visit and in vehicles

All primary fire incidents in non-domestic premises such as hotels, shops, schools, outdoor structures and in
wvehicles (including where a fire has occurred as a result of a collision).

3 month 12 month Trend (years) Against Expected
(vs previous)  (vs previous) 5 Apr-16

Measure Breakdown

All Fires 271 (326) 1321(1251) | A | ¥
Accidental Fires 189 (228) PPaoe 12V | Vv | ¥
Deliberate Fires 82 (98) 384 (290) AV Y




Corporate Measures 1to 6

Key Messages

Measure 1: Deaths as a result of fires where people live

There have been 6 fire-related deaths where people live in the 12 month reporting period from Apr-16 to Mar-17
compared to 8 in the previous 12 month period.

In the current quarter there have been 3 months within normal range, 0 within monitor range, O within action range.

Trends: long-term (60 months) - DOWN; medium-term (36 months) - DOWN; short-term (12 months) - DOWN

Measure 5: Fire related injures where people work, visit and in vehicles

There have been 21 injuries at fires where people work and visit and in vehicles in the 12 month reporting period
from Apr-16 to Mar-17 compared to the previous 12 month period (36 injuries).

In the current quarter there have been 3 months within normal range, 0 within monitor range, 0 within action range.

Trends: long-term (60 months) - DOWN; medium-term (36 months) - DOWN; short-term (12 months) - DOWN

Measure 6: Fires where people work, visit and in vehicles

There have been 1321 fires where people work and visit and in vehicles in the 12 month reporting period from Apr-
16 to Mar-17 compared to the previous 12 month period (1251 fires).

In the current quarter there have been 3 months within normal range, 0 within monitor range, 0 within action range.

Trends: long-term (60 months) - DOWN; medium-term (36 months) - DOWN; short-term (12 months) - UP

Measure 2: Fire related injures where people live

There have been 64 injuries at fires where people live in the 12 month reporting period from Apr-16 to Mar-17
compared to the previous 12 month period (83 injuries).

In the current quarter there have been 1 months within normal range, 2 within monitor range, 0 within action range.

Trends: long-term (60 months) - UP; medium-term (36 months) - UP; short-term (12 months) - DOWN

Measure 3: Fires where people live

There have been 1004 fires where people live in the 12 month reporting period from Apr-16 to Mar-17 compared to
the previous 12 month period (966 fires).

In the current quarter there have been 2 months within normal range, 1 within monitor range, 0 within action range.

Trends: long-term (60 months) - DOWN; medium-term (36 months) - UP; short-term (12 months) - UP

Measure 4: Deaths as a result of fires where people work, visit and in vehicles

There have been 5 fire-related deaths where people work and visit and in vehicles in the 12 month reporting period
from Apr-16 to Mar-17 compared to the previous 12 month period (0 deaths).

In the current quarter there have been 2 months within normal range, 0 within monitor range, 1 within action range.

Trends: long-term (60 months) - UP; medium-term (36 months) - UP; short-term (12 months) - UP

Page 13



April 2016 to March 2017
How is DSFRS improving performance?

Reducing fires in the home and related injuries and deaths
Related headlines:
. Measure 1: Deaths as a result of fires where people live

Measure 2: Injuries as a result of fires where people live

Measure 3: Fires where people live
What we are doing to improve performance:

Community Safety Strategy

A review of the Community Safety Strategy is currently being undertaken. The review team has revisited the
requirements of legislation around community safety and are currently collating data about potential risk in our
community. This will be plotted into a risk matrix against the expectations and needs of key stakeholders. Doing this
will allow DSFRS to use a community risk based approach to deciding how we target our resources towards

community safety, enabling us to have maximum impact in supporting the community.

The Integrated Care in Exeter Project (ICE) continues to expand in the wider Exeter area. ICE is a multi-agency
project designed to ensure those at risk receive the right interventions and support at the right time. This will reduce
system costs and improve the outcomes and experience for citizens by fundamentally changing the way agencies
respond to and influence the presentation of demand across the system by “Helping citizens to live their lives well,

and in a way that matters to them”.

Home fire safety visits (HFSV)

A business case has been taken to and agreed by the Senior Leadership team following the Home Safety Pilot. This
new approach will allow for a continued increase in the number of visits carried out and the quality of those \sits. This
approach is underpinned with data provided by DSFRS Business Intelligence team to allow targeting of those
households most at risk from fire. Recruitment is being progressed seeking a Home Safety Manager and admin
assistant to take the project forward across the senvice.

In North Dewon the Community Safety team have started an initiative with a partner care agency that send carers into
homes. Due to a low uptake of HFSVs a pilot is taking place to use a letter with joint logos that will be sent or hand
delivered by the carer explaining the HFSV. There is a tear off slip that can be handed back to the carer. This gives
the occupier a chance to digest the information, make an informed choice and have the confidence that it is a genuine

senice and not a scam.

Safeguarding Referrals

Any fire related concerns are immediately reported via our Safeguarding referral process and followed up with urgent
Home Safety \sits and immediate multi-agency involvement where appropriate. All actions are securely and
comprehensively logged, cases are monitored until all fire safety risks have been adequately addressed. On-going

referral process training has resulted in increased awareness and an increase in the number of referrals.

Partnership Working:

Across the authority partnership working is a key part of the prevention activity undertaken. The partnership register
continues to grow with new groups now on board. The data sharing message is being taken to strategic partnerships
which in turn is opening up opportunities with sharing resources with other senices.

Appropriate partnerships identified via our safeguarding referral process are highlighted for future targeting and are

deweloped by the Partnerships Officer. Page 14

10



April 2016 to March 2017
How is DSFRS improving performance?

Reducing fires in the home and related injuries and deaths continued...

Hoarding

An end-to-end Internal Hoarding Process for tackling hoarding has been deweloped by our Partnership Officer,
including the involvement of other appropriate agencies. There is clear evidence of success (clutter rating reduced
significantly) in a number of cases.

Dewelopment of the Torbay Hoarding Protocol is underway to create a Devon and later Senice-wide policy. A working
group has been established via the Devon Safeguarding Adults Board to assist the development of an ower-arching

policy.

Safeguarding

The Safeguarding Team works closely with locally identified Safeguarding champions in Group Support Teams to
appropriately address all safeguarding and welfare concerns in a timely and effective manner. All interventions and
interactions are carefully documented via a secure online reporting system, with timelines to clarify actions and to
allow interrogation for quality assurance purposes. Operational Assurance provides prompts and information following

incidents where a referral may have been missed.

The Vulnerable Persons’ Catalogue is a newly introduced reporting system that allows the safeguarding team to

monitor referrals by area in terms of local risk factors so that these can be addressed appropriately.

Juvenile FireSetters
Where juwenile fire-setting is identified, an online referral to our FireSetters Internvention programme is recommended.

Referrals are allocated to specially trained Advisers who work to reduce the risk of future fire-setting.

Other Local Initiatives:
The North Devon Prevention Team have been targeting national campaigns such as “National No Smoking day” and
“Arson Awareness Week” giving leaflets and advice. This was followed up with a radio internview on “The Voice” FM

which has led to the local hospital radio asking for a regular slot for Fire safety advice.
South Dewvon Group continues to play a lead role in the Torbay Strategic Partnership and Community Safety

Partnership. The Group is also working with local NHS partners to share data for more targeted prevention activity

amongst risk groups.

Page 15

11



Corporate Measures 1to 6
How is DSFRS improving performance?

Reducing fires where people work, visit and in vehicles and related injuries and deaths
Related headlines:
. Measure 5: Fire related injures where people work, visit and in vehicles

Measure 6: Fires where people work, visit and in vehicles

. Measure 4: Deaths as a result of fires where people work, visit and in vehicles

What we are doing to improve performance:
Partnerships
The Senice is deweloping a partnership with DCC Waste Management aimed at planning for prevention of fire and

dealing with fires at recycling centres.

The Primary Authority Scheme is where an Authority takes responsibility for regulatory advice where a business’
footprint is within more than one Authority area. The scheme is progressing well with the DSFRS partner and there is
potential for development of another partnership with a social housing provider, providing accommodation in Cornwall,

Dewon, Somerset and Dorset.

Inspection Programmes
A Fire Officer has been seconded into the Senice Headquarters Business Safety Team (BST) to review and monitor

the standard of delivery of business safety activities across Devon and Somerset, to identify good practice and resolve
issues with inconsistencies.

The existing inspection strategy is under review to take account of a new dataset/intelligence to focus on the highest

risk businesses in regards to life impact and business impact. Work is ongoing for planning a programme targeting

premises most likely to have fires in the next 12 months.

Page 16

12



Corporate Measures 7 and 8

Priority: Public Safety - Emergency Response Standards (ERS)

Measure 7: ERS for attendance at fires where people live

(a) First attendance - first appliance to attend within 10 minutes from time of call
This measure is recorded by the following criteria:
(i) ALL fires where people live attended

(i) Includes those fires where only 1 appliance was required (e.g. fires out on arrival)

3 month 12 month Trend (years) Against Expected
(vs previous) (vs previous) 1 3 5 Apr-16 Mar-l?‘

70% (64%) 68% (72%)

Measure Breakdown

All Eligible Incidents
Incidents Inside 10min Zone*.

* Due to the transition to the new IT system in Fire Control this information is currently unavailable for analysis.

(b) Full attendance - First appliance to attend within 10 minutes and 9 Personnel in 13 minutes

This measure is recorded by the following criteria:

(i) ALL fires where people live attended inside the 10 minute area only

(i) Excludes those fires where only 1 appliance was required (e.g. fires out on arrival)

(iii) Standard measured from time of call to 1st appliance arrival time within 10 minutes AND 9 personnel (irrespective
of number of appliances) within 13 minutes

3 month 12 month Trend (years) Against Expected

Measure Breakdown

(vs previous) (vs previous)

Incidents Inside 10min Zone*.

* Due to the transition to the new IT system in Fire Control this information is currently unavailable for analysis.

Measure 8: ERS for attendance at Road Traffic Collisions (RTCs)
(a) First attendance - first appliance to attend within 15 minutes

This measure is recorded according to the following criteria:

(i) ALL RTCs attended with the exception of late calls and turnbacks

() 15 minutes measured frpm time of call to time of first attendance

3 month 12 month Trend (years) Against Expected

Measure Breakdown (vs previous) (vs previous) 1 3 5 Apr-16

All Eligible Incidents 77% (73%) 75% (76%)

Page 17

13



Corporate Measures 7 and 8
Key Messages

Measure 7: ERS for attendance at fires where people live

The Senvice has achieved first response to fire incidents where people live within 10 mins for 68.4% of eligible
incidents during the 12 month reporting period from Apr-16 to Mar-17, a -3.4%pt change compared to the previous
12 month period (71.8% achieved).

In the current quarter there have been 2 months within normal range, 1 within monitor range, 0 within action range.

Trends: long-term (60 months) - DOWN; medium-term (36 months) - DOWN; short-term (12 months) - DOWN

Measure 8: ERS for attendance at Road Traffic Collisions (RTCs)

The Senvice has achieved first response to RTC incidents within 15 mins for 75% of eligible incidents during the 12
month reporting period from Apr-16 to Mar-17, a -0.9%pt change compared to the previous 12 month period (75.9%
achieved).

In the current quarter there have been 3 months within normal range, 0 within monitor range, O within action range.

Trends: long-term (60 months) - DOWN; medium-term (36 months) - DOWN; short-term (12 months) - DOWN

Page 18



Corporate Measures 7 & 8

How is DSFRS improving performance?

Achieving our emergency response standards (ERS)
Related headlines:
Measure 7: ERS for attendance at fires where people live

Measure 8: ERS for attendance at Road Traffic Collisions (RTCs)

What we are doing to improve performance:

The Semvice is investigating the drop in the ERS performance and we are aware that the majority of the times the
standard has not been met has been where incidents were located outside of the expected response zones. Therefore
the standard in these locations would be impossible to achieve. Analysis has shown that where incidents were
attended within calculated response zones (based on average turnout and travel time) dwelling fire ERS was achieved
on 83.6% of occasions and RTC ERS was achieved on 91.8% of occasions. Further analysis is being carried out and
it should be noted that the new performance measures will address this issue.

The semnvice has adopted a number of initiatives to improve availability of on-call crews and support DSFRES meeting its
response targets. The Community Firefighter initiative has been rolled out service wide following a successful pilot in
Somerset. Community Firefighters provide extra resource for stations where required as well as undertaking
prevention activities. The use of newly created crewing coordinators/availability resource managers ensures that
resources can be directed where they are most needed.

The on-call availability pilot, reflecting a new system for paying Firefighters with the focus on providing greater
reliability of cover for stations, continues to be monitored at the stations it is being piloted at.

Page 19

15



Sickness

Priority: Staff Safety - Sickness Rates

Actual
Apr-16 to Mar-17

Previous
Apr-15 to Mar-16

Measure Breakdown % Variance

Sickness Rates (All Staff) -6.20%

Average sick days taken per person, per month

n
i
-
Q
<

Sickness Rates by Post Type

Nov 15
Jan 16
May 16
Jun 16
Jul 16
Feb 17

Wholetime Station Based Staff Wholetime Non-Station Staff

Apr-16 to Mar-17

Actual Previous % Var. Actual Previous % Var.

Overall Sickness Rate

# Days / Shifts Lost 2739.5 3118.5
Sickness Rate - Long Term* 3.86 4.52
# Days / Shifts Lost - Long Term 1438.5 1776.5
Sickness Rate - Short Term Cert** 111 1.08
# Days / Shifts Lost - ST Cert. 414 425
Sickness Rate - Short Term*** 2.38 2.33
# Days / Shifts Lost - ST 887 917

Sickness Rates by Post Type
Apr-16 to Mar-17

Overall Sickness Rate

Actual

Control

Previous

% Var.

Actual

9.41

Support Staff

Previous

8.52

2223.58

2079.96

5.31

4.59

1254.4

1120.95

1.72

157

# Days / Shifts Lost 367.96 568
Sickness Rate - Long Term 4,78 7.47
# Days / Shifts Lost - Long Term 173.96 301
Sickness Rate - Short Term Cert. 1.13 2.66
# Days / Shifts Lost - ST Cert. 41 107
Sickness Rate - Short Term 4.2 3.97
# Days / Shifts Lost - ST 153 160

* Long Term Sickness: >28 Calendar Days

** Short-Term Certified Sickness: 8 to 28 Calendar Days

*** Short Term Sickness: <8 Calendar Days

406.69 382.3
2.38 2.36
562.49 576.71

Page 20



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Service Performance Report: April 2016 to March 2017
	APRC Q4 201617


